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granting or denying access) is governed
by 10 CFR 2.311.3

I. The Commission expects that the
NRC staff and presiding officers (and
any other reviewing officers) will
consider and resolve requests for access
to SUNSI, and motions for protective
orders, in a timely fashion in order to

minimize any unnecessary delays in
identifying those petitioners who have
standing and who have propounded
contentions meeting the specificity and
basis requirements in 10 CFR part 2.
The attachment to this Order
summarizes the general target schedule

for processing and resolving requests
under these procedures.

It is so ordered.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 12th day

of March, 2019.
For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

Annette L. Vietti-Cook,
Secretary of the Commission.

ATTACHMENT 1—GENERAL TARGET SCHEDULE FOR PROCESSING AND RESOLVING REQUESTS FOR ACCESS TO SENSITIVE
UNCLASSIFIED NON-SAFEGUARDS INFORMATION IN THIS PROCEEDING

Event/activity

Day
0 e
structions for access requests.
10 e,
an adjudicatory proceeding.
(<10
20 e
review of redacted documents).
25 e

Agreement for SUNSI.

tive order.

Publication of Federal Register notice of hearing and opportunity to petition for leave to intervene, including order with in-

Deadline for submitting requests for access to SUNSI with information: Supporting the standing of a potential party identified
by name and address; describing the need for the information in order for the potential party to participate meaningfully in

Deadline for submitting petition for intervention containing: (i) Demonstration of standing; and (ii) all contentions whose formu-
lation does not require access to SUNSI (+25 Answers to petition for intervention; +7 petitioner/requestor reply).

NRC staff informs the requester of the staff's determination whether the request for access provides a reasonable basis to
believe standing can be established and shows need for SUNSI. (NRC staff also informs any party to the proceeding
whose interest independent of the proceeding would be harmed by the release of the information.) If NRC staff makes the
finding of need for SUNSI and likelihood of standing, NRC staff begins document processing (preparation of redactions or

If NRC staff finds no “need” or no likelihood of standing, the deadline for petitioner/requester to file a motion seeking a ruling
to reverse the NRC staff’'s denial of access; NRC staff files copy of access determination with the presiding officer (or Chief
Administrative Judge or other designated officer, as appropriate). If NRC staff finds “need” for SUNSI, the deadline for any
party to the proceeding whose interest independent of the proceeding would be harmed by the release of the information to
file a motion seeking a ruling to reverse the NRC staff’s grant of access.

Deadline for NRC staff reply to motions to reverse NRC staff determination(s).

(Receipt +30) If NRC staff finds standing and need for SUNSI, deadline for NRC staff to complete information processing and
file motion for Protective Order and draft Non-Disclosure Affidavit. Deadline for applicant/licensee to file Non-Disclosure

If access granted: Issuance of presiding officer or other designated officer decision on motion for protective order for access
to sensitive information (including schedule for providing access and submission of contentions) or decision reversing a
final adverse determination by the NRC staff.

Deadline for filing executed Non-Disclosure Affidavits. Access provided to SUNSI consistent with decision issuing the protec-

Deadline for submission of contentions whose development depends upon access to SUNSI. However, if more than 25 days
remain between the petitioner’s receipt of (or access to) the information and the deadline for filing all other contentions (as
established in the notice of opportunity to request a hearing and petition for leave to intervene), the petitioner may file its
SUNSI contentions by that later deadline.

(Contention receipt +25) Answers to contentions whose development depends upon access to SUNSI.

(Answer receipt +7) Petitioner/Intervenor reply to answers.

Decision on contention admission.
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NUCLEAR REGULATORY
COMMISSION

[NRC—-2018-0194]

Information Collection: Specific
Domestic Licenses to Manufacture or
Transfer Certain Items Containing
Byproduct Material

AGENCY: Nuclear Regulatory
Commission.

ACTION: Renewal of existing information
collection; request for comment.

3Requesters should note that the filing
requirements of the NRC’s E-Filing Rule (72 FR
49139; August 28, 2007, as amended at 77 FR

SUMMARY: The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory
Commission (NRC) invites public
comment on the renewal of Office of
Management and Budget (OMB)
approval for an existing collection of
information. The information collection
is entitled, “Specific Domestic Licenses
to Manufacture or Transfer Certain
Items Containing Byproduct Material.”

DATES: Submit comments by June 3,
2019. Comments received after this date
will be considered if it is practical to do
so, but the Commission is able to ensure
consideration only for comments
received on or before this date.

ADDRESSES: You may submit comments
by any of the following methods:

46562; August 3, 2012) apply to appeals of NRC
staff determinations (because they must be served
on a presiding officer or the Commission, as

e Federal Rulemaking website: Go to
http://www.regulations.gov and search
for Docket ID NRC-2018-0194. Address
questions about docket IDs in
Regulations.gov to Jennifer Borges;
telephone: 301-287-9127; email:
Jennifer.Borges@nrc.gov.

For technical questions, contact the
individual listed in the FOR FURTHER
INFORMATION CONTACT section of this
document.

e Mail comments to: David Cullison,
Office of the Chief Information Officer,
Mail Stop: T6—A10M, U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington,
DC 20555-0001.

For additional direction on obtaining
information and submitting comments,
see “‘Obtaining Information and

applicable), but not to the initial SUNSI request
submitted to the NRC staff under these procedures.


http://www.regulations.gov
mailto:Jennifer.Borges@nrc.gov
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Submitting Comments” in the
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION section of
this document.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
David Cullison, Office of the Chief
Information Officer, U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington,
DC 20555-0001; telephone: 301-415—
2084; email: Infocollects.Resource@
nre.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

I. Obtaining Information and
Submitting Comments

A. Obtaining Information

Please refer to Docket ID NRC-2018—
0194 when contacting the NRC about
the availability of information for this
action. You may obtain publicly-
available information related to this
action by any of the following methods:

e Federal Rulemaking website: Go to
http://www.regulations.gov and search
for Docket ID NRC-2018—-0194.

e NRC’s Agencywide Documents
Access and Management System
(ADAMS): You may obtain publicly-
available documents online in the
ADAMS Public Documents collection at
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/
adams.html. To begin the search, select
“ADAMS Public Documents” and then
select “‘Begin Web-based ADAMS
Search.” For problems with ADAMS,
please contact the NRC’s Public
Document Room (PDR) reference staff at
1-800-397-4209, 301-415—4737, or by
email to pdr.resource@nrc.gov. The
supporting statement and NRC Form
653, 653A and 653B are available in
ADAMS under Accession Nos.
ML18323A028 and ML19037A053,
respectively.

e NRC’s PDR: You may examine and
purchase copies of public documents at
the NRC’s PDR, Room O1-F21, One
White Flint North, 11555 Rockville
Pike, Rockville, Maryland 20852.

e NRC’s Clearance Officer: A copy of
the collection of information and related
instructions may be obtained without
charge by contacting NRC’s Clearance
Officer, David Cullison, Office of the
Chief Information Officer, U.S. Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington,
DC 20555-0001; telephone: 301-415—
2084; email: Infocollects.Resource@
nre.gov.

B. Submitting Comments

Please include Docket ID NRC-2018—
0194 in the subject line of your
comment submission, in order to ensure
that the NRC is able to make your
comment submission available to the
public in this docket.

The NRC cautions you not to include
identifying or contact information in

comment submissions that you do not
want to be publicly disclosed in your
comment submission. The NRC will
post all comment submissions at http://
www.regulations.gov as well as enter the
comment submissions into ADAMS,
and the NRC does not routinely edit
comment submissions to remove
identifying or contact information.

If you are requesting or aggregating
comments from other persons for
submission to the NRC, then you should
inform those persons not to include
identifying or contact information that
they do not want to be publicly
disclosed in their comment submission.
Your request should state that the NRC
does not routinely edit comment
submissions to remove such information
before making the comment
submissions available to the public or
entering the comment into ADAMS.

II. Background

In accordance with the Paperwork
Reduction Act of 1995 (44 U.S.C.
Chapter 35), the NRC is requesting
public comment on its intention to
request the OMB’s approval for the
information collection summarized
below.

1. The title of the information
collection: Title 10 of the Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR), part 32,
“Specific Domestic Licenses to
Manufacture or Transfer Certain Items
Containing Byproduct Material.”

2. OMB approval number: 3150-0001.

3. Type of submission: Extension.

4. The form number, if applicable:
NRC Form 653, NRC Form 653A, and
NRC Form 653B.

5. How often the collection is required
or requested: There is a one-time
submittal of information to receive a
certificate of registration for a sealed
source and/or device. Certificates of
registration for sealed sources and/or
devices can be amended at any time. In
addition, licensee recordkeeping must
be performed on an on-going basis, and
reporting of transfer of byproduct
material must be reported every
calendar year, and in some cases, every
calendar quarter.

6. Who will be required or asked to
respond: All specific licensees who
manufacture or initially transfer items
containing byproduct material for sale
or distribution to general licensees, or
persons exempt from licensing, medical
use product distributors to specific
licensees, and those requesting a
certificate of registration for a sealed
source and/or device.

7. The estimated number of annual
responses: 3,197 [2,637 reporting + 252
recordkeepers + 308 third-party
recordkeepers].

8. The estimated number of annual
respondents: 617 (180 NRC licenses,
registration certificate holder, and 437
Agreement States licensees and
registration certificate holders).

9. The estimated number of hours
needed annually to comply with the
information collection requirement or
request: 66,585 (18,405 reporting +
1,112 recordkeeping + 47,068 third-
party).

10. Abstract: 10 CFR part 32,
establishes requirements for specific
licenses for the introduction of
byproduct material into products or
materials and transfer of the products or
materials to general licensees, or
persons exempt from licensing, medical
use product distributors to specific
licensees, and those requesting a
certificate of registration for a sealed
source and/or device. It also prescribes
requirements governing holders of the
specific licenses. Some of the
requirements are for information which
must be submitted in an application for
a certificate of registration for a sealed
source and/or device, records which
must be kept, reports which must be
submitted, and information which must
be forwarded to general licensees and
persons exempt from licensing. As
mentioned, 10 CFR part 32 also
prescribes requirements for the issuance
of certificates of registration (concerning
radiation safety information about a
product) to manufacturers or initial
transferors of sealed sources and
devices. Submission or retention of the
information is mandatory for persons
subject to the 10 CFR part 32
requirements. The information is used
by the NRC to make licensing and other
regulatory determinations concerning
the use of radioactive byproduct
material in products and devices.

III. Specific Requests for Comments

The NRC is seeking comments that
address the following questions:

1. Is the proposed collection of
information necessary for the NRC to
properly perform its functions? Does the
information have practical utility?

2. Is the estimate of the burden of the
information collection accurate?

3. Is there a way to enhance the
quality, utility, and clarity of the
information to be collected?

4. How can the burden of the
information collection on respondents
be minimized, including the use of
automated collection techniques or
other forms of information technology?

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 28th day
of March 2019.
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For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.
David C. Cullison,

NRC Clearance Officer, Office of the Chief
Information Officer.

[FR Doc. 2019-06331 Filed 4-1-19; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7590-01-P

POSTAL REGULATORY COMMISSION

[Docket Nos. MC2019-108 and CP2019-117;
MC2019-109 and CP2019-118]

New Postal Products

AGENCY: Postal Regulatory Commission.
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: The Commission is noticing a
recent Postal Service filing for the
Commission’s consideration concerning
negotiated service agreements. This
notice informs the public of the filing,
invites public comment, and takes other
administrative steps.

DATES: Comments are due: April 4,
2019.

ADDRESSES: Submit comments
electronically via the Commission’s
Filing Online system at http://
www.prc.gov. Those who cannot submit
comments electronically should contact
the person identified in the FOR FURTHER
INFORMATION CONTACT section by
telephone for advice on filing
alternatives.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
David A. Trissell, General Counsel, at
202-789-6820.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Table of Contents

1. Introduction
II. Docketed Proceeding(s)

I. Introduction

The Commission gives notice that the
Postal Service filed request(s) for the
Commission to consider matters related
to negotiated service agreement(s). The
request(s) may propose the addition or
removal of a negotiated service
agreement from the market dominant or
the competitive product list, or the
modification of an existing product
currently appearing on the market
dominant or the competitive product
list.

Section II identifies the docket
number(s) associated with each Postal
Service request, the title of each Postal
Service request, the request’s acceptance
date, and the authority cited by the
Postal Service for each request. For each
request, the Commission appoints an
officer of the Commission to represent
the interests of the general public in the
proceeding, pursuant to 39 U.S.C. 505
(Public Representative). Section II also

establishes comment deadline(s)
pertaining to each request.

The public portions of the Postal
Service’s request(s) can be accessed via
the Commission’s website (http://
www.prc.gov). Non-public portions of
the Postal Service’s request(s), if any,
can be accessed through compliance
with the requirements of 39 CFR
3007.301.1

The Commission invites comments on
whether the Postal Service’s request(s)
in the captioned docket(s) are consistent
with the policies of title 39. For
request(s) that the Postal Service states
concern market dominant product(s),
applicable statutory and regulatory
requirements include 39 U.S.C. 3622, 39
U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR part 3010, and 39
CFR part 3020, subpart B. For request(s)
that the Postal Service states concern
competitive product(s), applicable
statutory and regulatory requirements
include 39 U.S.C. 3632, 39 U.S.C. 3633,
39 U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR part 3015, and
39 CFR part 3020, subpart B. Comment
deadline(s) for each request appear in
section II.

II. Docketed Proceeding(s)

1. Docket No(s).: MC2019-108 and
CP2019-117; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Priority Contract 515 to
Competitive Product List and Notice of
Filing Materials Under Seal; Filing
Acceptance Date: March 27, 2019; Filing
Authority: 39 U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR
3020.30 et seq., and 39 CFR 3015.5;
Public Representative: Curtis E. Kidd;
Comments Due: April 4, 2019.

2. Docket No(s).: MC2019-109 and
CP2019-118; Filing Title: USPS Request
to Add Parcel Return Service Contract
15 to Competitive Product List and
Notice of Filing Materials Under Seal;
Filing Acceptance Date: March 27, 2019;
Filing Authority: 39 U.S.C. 3642, 39 CFR
3020.30 et seq., and 39 CFR 3015.5;
Public Representative: Curtis E. Kidd;
Comments Due: April 4, 2019.

This Notice will be published in the
Federal Register.

Stacy L. Ruble,

Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2019-06350 Filed 4-1-19; 8:45 am)]
BILLING CODE 7710-FW-P

POSTAL SERVICE

Product Change—Priority Mail
Negotiated Service Agreement

AGENCY: Postal Service™,

1 See Docket No. RM2018-3, Order Adopting
Final Rules Relating to Non-Public Information,
June 27, 2018, Attachment A at 19-22 (Order No.
4679).

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: The Postal Service gives
notice of filing a request with the Postal
Regulatory Commission to add a
domestic shipping services contract to
the list of Negotiated Service
Agreements in the Mail Classification
Schedule’s Competitive Products List.

DATES: Date of required notice: April 2,
2019.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Elizabeth Reed, 202—-268-3179.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The
United States Postal Service® hereby
gives notice that, pursuant to 39 U.S.C.
3642 and 3632(b)(3), on March 28, 2019,
it filed with the Postal Regulatory
Commission a USPS Request to Add
Priority Mail Contract 516 to
Competitive Product List. Documents
are available at www.pre.gov, Docket
Nos. MC2019-110, CP2019-119.

Elizabeth Reed,
Attorney, Corporate and Postal Business Law.

[FR Doc. 2019-06370 Filed 4-1-19; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7710-12-P

POSTAL SERVICE

Product Change—Priority Mail
Express, Priority Mail, & First-Class
Package Service Negotiated Service
Agreement

AGENCY: Postal Service™,
ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: The Postal Service gives
notice of filing a request with the Postal
Regulatory Commission to add a
domestic shipping services contract to
the list of Negotiated Service
Agreements in the Mail Classification
Schedule’s Competitive Products List.

DATES: Date of required notice: April 2,
2019.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Elizabeth Reed, 202—-268—-3179.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The
United States Postal Service® hereby
gives notice that, pursuant to 39 U.S.C.
3642 and 3632(b)(3), on March 28, 2019,
it filed with the Postal Regulatory
Commission a USPS Request to Add
Priority Mail Express, Priority Mail, &
First-Class Package Service Contract 57
to Competitive Product List. Documents
are available at www.prc.gov, Docket
Nos. MC2019-113, CP2019-122.

Elizabeth Reed,

Attorney, Corporate and Postal Business Law.
[FR Doc. 2019-06376 Filed 4-1-19; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7710-12-P
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